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Chief Executive Officer’s Foreword

The Midland Redevelopment Authority was established on 1 January 2000 under the
Midland Redevelopment Act 1999 and was inaugurated by founding
Chairman lan Laurance and the Acting Chief Executive Officer Mr Jack Busch. In
May 2000 | was appointed as the Acting Chief Executive Officer and in October of
that year was appointed as Chief Executive Officer. In mid-2004 Dr Fred Affleck
became Chairman and held that position until the close of operations on
30 December 2011. These stable and effective leadership arrangements for the
Midland Redevelopment Authority have been a strong contributor to the overall
success of the Midland revitalisation project.

The mission of the Midland Redevelopment Authority has been to be a catalyst for
revitalising Midland by creating an excellent urban environment in the Midland
Redevelopment Area. The Midland Redevelopment Authority adopted the following
guiding objectives:

. Attract people to Midland to live, work, learn and enjoy.

" Integrate development to maximise benefits for the city and the community.

" Enhance environmental, social, heritage and cultural values in Midland and
around the redevelopment area.

. Invest responsibly for sustainable economic outcomes.

On 30 December 2011 the Midland Redevelopment Authority completed its 12th
year of operation. During its life the Midland Redevelopment Authority had many
major achievements worthy of celebrating:

. creating the Midland Metro project of Juniper Gardens, which was awarded the
2011 Urban Development Institute of Australia’s WA (UDIA) award for urban
renewal, and establishing The Crescent estate;

. winning the ‘Great Places’ Award for Juniper Gardens from the Planning
Institute of Australia (WA) in 2011,

. creating the UDIA award-winning Woodbridge Lakes estate in 2008;

. conserving the State heritage-listed former Midland Railway Workshops site
and creating a unigue urban renewal project with the Midland Atelier - a
creativity and innovation hub - at its heart;

. conducting extensive soil remediation of the former Midland Railway
Workshops site as part of The Workshops project;

. assisting in the establishment of the WA Police Service Operations Support
Facility;

. developing a premium large format retail precinct; and

" attracting the Midland Health Campus and GP Super Clinic as the foundation
for a larger health precinct.
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From 31 December 2011 the Metropolitan Redevelopment Authority assumed
responsibility for the Midland revitalisation project. Urban renewal will continue
under its leadership with significant projects such as the new Midland Health
Campus, the redevelopment of the former Midland Livestock Saleyards and the
completion of The Workshops subdivision maintaining the momentum of Midland’s
renaissance.

| would like to acknowledge the dedication and work of all of the Midland
Redevelopment Authority Board members, staff and key expert consultants who
contributed so generously to the success of the Midland Redevelopment Authority in
revitalising Midland over the last 12 years.

<M

Kieran Gerard Kinsella
REPORTING OFFICER
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Introduction

On 22 June 2011, the Minister for Planning Hon John Day MLA introduced the
Metropolitan Redevelopment Authority Bill 2011 into State Parliament to create a
new Metropolitan Redevelopment Authority. Sections 1 and 2 of the Metropolitan
Redevelopment Authority Act 2011 (Act) came into operation upon Royal Assent on
12 October 2011, followed by Sections 3, 29, 30, 36 and 132 on 7 November 2011,
with the rest of the Act becoming fully operational on 31 December 2011. The Act
resulted in the abolition of the Midland Redevelopment Authority. The Midland
Redevelopment Authority’s operations, together with those of the abolished East
Perth, Subiaco and Armadale Redevelopment Authorities were assumed by the
Metropolitan Redevelopment Authority.

Section 68(3)(b) of the Financial Management Act 2006 requires that if an agency is
abolished prior to the end of the financial year for the agency, the agency’s reporting
officer is to “prepare and submit to the Minister a report in respect of the agency for
the period starting from the end of the last financial year of the agency to have ended
before the abolition and ending with the abolition.”. In the case of the Midland
Redevelopment Authority the reporting period for its final report is 1 July 2011 to
30 December 2011. The final report must include a full set of financial statements
for the period, full year comparatives, and a limited report on operations.
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Authority Establishing Agency

The Midland Redevelopment Authority was established under the Midland
Redevelopment Act 1999 and commenced operations on 1 January 2000.

Ministerial Responsibility

John Day BSc BDSc MLA, Minister for Planning; Culture and the Arts; Science and
Innovation.

Legislation Administered

In the performance of its functions, the Midland Redevelopment Authority complied
with the Midland Redevelopment Act 1999 and the following relevant legislation:

Corporate Legislation

Auditor General Act 2006

Disability Services Act 1993

Equal Opportunity Act 1984

Financial Management Act 2006

Freedom of Information Act 1992

Industrial Relations Act 1979

Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984

Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003

Public Sector Management Act 1994

Salaries and Allowances Act 1975

State Records Act 2000

State Superannuation Act 2000

State Supply Commission Act 1991

Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996
Workers Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981

Land Development Legislation

Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972

Contaminated Sites Act 2006

Environmental Protection Act 1986

Heritage of Western Australia Act 1990

Land Administration Act 1997

Main Roads Act 1930

Planning and Development Act 2005

Swan and Canning Rivers Management Act 2006
Transfer of Land Act 1893

In its financial administration the Midland Redevelopment Authority complied with the
requirements of the Financial Management Act 2006 and all other relevant
legislation, and exercised controls which provide reasonable assurance that the
receipt and expenditure of money and the acquisition and disposal of public property
and incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative provisions.
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Board

The Midland Redevelopment Authority Board consisted of five members appointed by
the Minister for Planning, two of whom were nominated by the City of Swan. This
close connection with the City of Swan reflected a genuine partnership between the
Midland Redevelopment Authority and the City.

The members represented a broad spectrum of knowledge and experience in fields
appropriate to the activities of the Midland Redevelopment Authority. A profile of
each Board member is provided below:

Dr Fred Affleck, Chairman

Dr Affleck is a transport expert who has been the Chairman of the Midland
Redevelopment Authority since 2004. He has experience in academia and industry,
having consulted in New South Wales, Victoria, South Australia and Western
Australia.

He is also Deputy Chair of the Fremantle Port Authority, Chair of the Freight and
Logistics Council of Western Australia and Chair of the Planning and Transport
Research Centre. He is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors
and the Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport.

Dr Affleck served on the National Transport Commission from 2006 to 2008 and is
an Adjunct Professor at Curtin, Murdoch and Edith Cowan Universities.

Mr Phil DiMasi, Deputy Chairman

Mr DiMasi is the founder and Managing Director of Ventura Homes and a registered
builder. He was born in Midland and completed his secondary education there
before becoming involved in the building industry.

He has been a member of the executive council of the Housing Industry Association
and is a member of the Master Builders Association and the Australian Institute of
Management.

Dr Ann ten Seldam

Dr ten Seldam has lived in Guildford since 1976 and has worked in the Midland and
Hills areas for many years. She is well known in the local community as a medical
practitioner and as a Board member of the Swan City Youth Service.

Dr ten Seldam has worked with the Royal Flying Doctor Rural Female GP Service
and the Street Doctor Service.
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Cr Jon Holmes (to 15 October 2011%)

Cr Holmes lives in Viveash and was first elected to the Swan City Council's Midland
Ward in 2003.

Cr Holmes chairs the City of Swan's Bush Fire Advisory Committee and its Local
Emergency Management Committee, and represents the Council on the Eastern
District Emergency Management Committee. He is also a member of the Council's
audit committee, the Local Government Reference Group of the Swan Catchment
Council for Natural Resource Management and a member of the Board of Jobs
Australia.

Cr Holmes served the Midland Redevelopment Authority Board to 15 October 2011.

Cr Mel Congerton JP

Cr Congerton chaired the Midland Redevelopment Authority’s Audit and Risk
Management Committee. He was first elected to the City of Swan Council in 1999
and served as Deputy Mayor from 2005 to October 2009. Cr Congerton is also
currently the Chairman of the Local Government Advisory Board, the Eastern Region
Business and Enterprise Arts Centre and the City of Swan Audit Committee. He also
serves on the boards of several community groups based in the City of Swan.

Cr Congerton is the proprietor of Perfect Climate Control and MPC Consulting.

*Following the October 2011 election of Councillors, the City of Swan chose to leave
one nominated position vacant given the impending wind up of the Midland
Redevelopment Authority.
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Organisational Structure

The Chief Executive Officer administered the day-to-day operations of the Midland
Redevelopment Authority and had prescribed delegated authority for particular
management decisions. With the exception of the Chief Executive Officer, the
Midland Redevelopment Authority employed no staff directly; staff were seconded
from the Department of Planning and consultants also provided support.
At 30 December 2011, six staff members were on secondment to the Midland
Redevelopment Authority.

The Midland Redevelopment Authority was structured to reflect its functional
programs. The operating sections were:

= Place Creation
" Place Development
= Business Services

Organisational Chart as at 30 December 2011
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Staff Profile

30 June 2011 30 December 2011

Full-time permanent 7 6
Full-time contract 1 0
Part-time measured on a FTE basis 1 0
On secondment* 0 0

9 6

Midland Redevelopment Authority staff 1 July to 30 December 2011

Chief Executive Officer Kieran Kinsella

Business Support Officer Nicole Carey

Administrative Assistant Gail Hayes

Director Planning Annelise Safstrom

Manager Planning Projects Colin Connor

Senior Planning Consultant Julie Mackay (to 22 December 2011)
Planning Officer Jocelyn Baister

Director Place Development Sandor Windnagel (to 24 November 2011)
Property Management Officer Martin Clark

Key consultants as at 30 December 2011:

Place Creation / Development

Heritage Helen Munt
Palassis Architects
John Taylor Architect
Griffiths Architects
Philip McAllister Architect Pty Ltd
Hocking Heritage Studio
TPG Town Planning and Urban Design

Environment Aurora Environmental

Engineering Wood & Grieve Engineers
Landscaping Composite

Surveyors McMullen Nolan Surveyors

Planning and Urban Design TPG Town Planning and Urban Design
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Business Services

Audit Services Internal Audit — Stanton Partners
External Audit — Office of Auditor General
(BDO Kendalls)

Valuation Services Landgate Valuation Services
DTZ (WA) Pty Ltd
Christie Whyte Moore

Property Sales and Consulting Time Conti and DTZ (WA) Pty Ltd

Midland Redevelopment Authority Final Report 1 July to 30 December 2011
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Key Achievements and Activities

Performance Highlights July to December 2011

Lodging the third and final Mandatory Auditor’'s Report with the Department of
Environment and Conservation - a critical milestone in remediating The
Workshops in preparation for re-sale and re-use.

Attracting the Midland Health Campus (MHC) and GP Super Clinic as the
foundation for a larger health precinct.

Undertaking planning for the Midland Station Precinct with the Public Transport
Authority for a new station and bus interchange on Cale Street adjacent to the
MHC site.

Winning the ‘Great Places’ award for Juniper Gardens from the Planning
Institute of Australia (WA).

Winning an Award for Excellence in Urban Renewal for Midland Metro from the
Urban Development Institute of Australia (WA).

Finalising the Woodbridge Precinct and handing planning control of the area
back to the City of Swan as part of the Midland Redevelopment Authority’s
normalisation process.

MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
BOUNDARY FOLLOWING NORMALISATION

WELAND

/
/

(BELLEVUE—

Hon. Minister for Planning......

® | cartify thiz plan, prapared for the purpose of Gafining the raceveiopment ares uncer the /
M Miciand Redeveiopment Act 1395
p
|
i
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Place Creation

Place Creation translated the vision for the redevelopment area into the detailed
planning program which prepared and delivered land for development. It shaped the
physical outcomes of the Midland redevelopment project and provided integrated,
sustainable development solutions for each distinct parcel of land. Place Creation
covered two business areas, Planning and Statutory Planning.

Planning:
Key Planning achievements to 30 December 2011 include:

= attracting the Midland Health Campus (MHC) and GP Super Clinic as the
foundation for a larger health precinct;

= finalising the amendment of the Redevelopment Area with the removal of the
northern land parcel known as the Woodbridge Precinct from Midland
Redevelopment Authority’s planning control as part of the normalisation process.
The area reverted to City of Swan planning control and the Metropolitan Region
Scheme was reinstated;

= planning the Midland Station Precinct with the Public Transport Authority for a
new station and bus interchange on Cale Street adjacent to the MHC site;

= winning the ‘Great Places’ Award for Juniper Gardens from the Planning Institute
of Australia (WA);

= winning an Award for Excellence in Urban Renewal for Midland Metro from the
Urban Development Institute of Australia (WA); and

= finalising conservation plans for key heritage buildings; identifying significant
machinery and equipment from the former workshops for retention; and
developing a Workshops Interpretation Concepts Plan.

Statutory Planning:

An integral role of Place Creation was to fulfil the Midland Redevelopment Authority’s
statutory planning responsibilities. To 30 December 2011 this was achieved by:

" managing the Midland Redevelopment Authority’s development control
functions to ensure timely and accurate assessment and processing of
development applications;

" monitoring and controlling the development and delivery of subdivision plans to
facilitate the Midland Redevelopment Authority’s land release program,
particularly towards the release of titles for components of The Workshops; and

" reviewing planning policies and seeking amendments as required.
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Place Development

This directorate had a broad range of responsibilities in the four business areas of:
Place Development; Place Management; Communication and Public Relations; and
Economic and Business Development.

Place Development:

Place Development implemented the detailed plans for the land being redeveloped
and prepared land for market. This included demolition, environmental remediation,
installation of infrastructure, subdivision works and development control required to
prepare and develop the land for sale.

Key Place Development achievements to 30 December 2011 include:

= completing the third and final remediation validation report for the Helena
Precinct;

= progressing the lodgement and endorsement of the Midland Redevelopment
Authority’s third Mandatory Audit Report with the Department of Environment and
Conservation - a critical component of the environmental clearance required to
release land to market;

= continuing to contract building works to Pindan to enable the strata titling of Block
1 (Lot 746) to facilitate the co-construction of the Midland GP Super Clinic;

= preparing an Economic and Expenditure Reform Committee submission relating
to the redevelopment of Western Australian Meat Industry Authority land,;

= seeking consultants in the areas of: planning; landscape architecture; civil
engineering, environment; heritage and conservation; and traffic engineering;

= preparing and costing preliminary estimates of the impact of the initial and
ultimate development of the Midland Health Campus at Lot 515 Yelverton Drive
on the local area road network; and

= preparing scope and cost estimates for the balance of subdivision works to
complete Sectors 10C 10D and 10E the Midland Workshops site.

Place Management:

Place Management involved managing the Midland Redevelopment Authority’s
assets and developing initiatives to activate the buildings and public spaces to make
the city a vibrant, interesting and welcoming place.

Key Place Management achievements to 30 December 2011 include:

" preserving the Midland Redevelopment Authority’s assets through proactive
maintenance programs, including the preparing and implementing an asset
maintenance program;

" managing the Midland Redevelopment Authority’s properties to ensure they
remain ready and available for active re-use including temporarily leasing
space to a range of local organisations and government agencies; and

. managing security and access to The Workshops.
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Communications and Public Relations:

This component of Place Development focused on developing and implementing
communication strategies to position the Midland Redevelopment Authority as an
innovative and successful government land developer, leading the urban renewal
program responsible for transforming Midland and strengthening the economy of the
broader Swan region.

Key Communications and Public Relations achievements to 30 December 2011
include:

" increasing public and media exposure of the Midland Redevelopment
Authority’s work by liaising with the media, stakeholders and interested parties,
as well as issuing regular media releases and newsletters;

" producing corporate documents on time and in line with corporate and external
requirements;

" preparing briefings and project-related stakeholder liaison material; and

. attending meetings of the Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council Midland
Working Group.

Economic and Business Development:

The goal of Economic and Business Development was to attract new economic and
enterprise initiatives, enhance cultural diversity and to make Midland a vibrant,
interesting and welcoming place. Work in this business area was predominantly
undertaken in partnership with the City of Swan and other stakeholders with an
interest in growing the local economy and building community wellbeing.

Key Economic and Business Development achievements to 30 December 2011
include:

" ensuring Midland is job and opportunity ready for the arrival of major institutions
- including the Midland Health Campus and a potential university or college — in
conjunction with the Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council, City of Swan and
Swan Chamber of Commerce; and

" continuing the development of a creative industries precinct at The Workshops
via a partnership with FORM to operate and grow the Midland Atelier, a
creativity and innovation enclave.

Business Services

Business Services comprised three key functions: Corporate Support; Commercial
Operations; and Financial Operations. Business Services provided commercial,
administrative and financial support that meets the needs of the Midland
Redevelopment Authority's internal and external customers.
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The Business Services directorate’s focus was to manage the commercial and
corporate operations of the Midland Redevelopment Authority including
procurement, land acquisition, sales of developed land and commercial leasing. The
Midland Redevelopment Authority’s corporate functions included accounting, human
resources and corporate and statutory administration. The focus was to ensure that
commercial opportunities were recognised and the benefit to the Midland
Redevelopment Authority maximised.

Corporate Support:

Key Corporate Support achievements to 30 December 2011 include:

. providing quality advice and meeting key external reporting information and
timeframe requirements of agencies such as Department of Treasury,
Department of Finance and Office of the Auditor General,

. providing project assistance for the transition of Midland Redevelopment
Authority’s Records Management System to that of the new amalgamated
authority from 1 January 2012; and

" preparing and providing information necessary to allow an adequate
assessment of the Midland Redevelopment Authority’s performance during the
year, including the Annual Report.

Commercial Operations:

Key Commercial Operations achievements to 30 December 2011 include:

. accepting an offer for the sale of the Chief Mechanical Engineers Building, Lot
802 Yelverton Drive; and

" preparing marketing material and taking Lots 802-804 and Lots 900-911 to
market.

Financial Operations:

Key Financial Operations achievements to 30 December 2011linclude:

" managing net debt levels to minimise borrowing costs; and
" meeting all statutory financial reporting requirements throughout the year.
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i

Auditor General

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Parliament of Western Australia
MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Report on the Financial Statements
| have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Midland Redevelopment Authority.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at
30 December 2011, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statement of Cash Flows for the six months then ended, and Motes comprising a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Reporting Officer’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Midland Redevelopment Authonty ceased to exist on 30 December 2011. The Treasurer
appointed a Reporting Officer under section 68 of the Financial Management Act 2006 who
was responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer's Instructions that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

Auditor's Responsibility

As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed fo
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intemal control relevant to the Reporting Officer's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Reporing Officer, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial posiion of the Midland Redevelopment Authorty at
30 December 2011 and its financial performance and cash flows for the six months then
ended. They are in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer's
Instructions.

Page 1 of 2 H
T Foor Alibert Facey House 463 Wialington Street Perth MAIL TO: Perth BC PO Box 8489 Perth WA 6349 TEL 0B 6557 7500 FAX: D6 6557 7600 E
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Midland Redevelopment Authority

Report on Controls

| have audited the controls exercised by the Midland Redevelopment Authority. The Board was
responsible for ensuring that adequate control is maintained over the receipt, expenditure and
investment of money, the acguisition and disposal of public and other property, and the
incurring of liabilities in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the
Treasurer's Instructions, and other relevant written law.

As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
controls exercised by the Board based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards.

Opinion

In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Midland Redevelopment Authority are sufficiently
adequate to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of
money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in
accordance with legislative provisions.

Independence
In conducting this audit, | have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor
General Act 2006 and the Awusfralian Auditing Standards, and other relevant ethical
requirements.

ety

COLIN MURPHY
AUDITOR GENERAL
22 March 2012

Page 2 of 2
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The accompanying financial statements of the Midland Redevelopment Authority
have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management
Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial
transactions for the six months ended 30 December 2011 and the financial position
as at 30 December 2011.

At the date of signing | am not aware of any circumstances which would render any
particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

w‘
Kieran Kinsella
REPORTING OFFICER

21 March 2012
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Midland Redevelopment Authority

Financial Statements

For the six months ended 30 December 2011
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the period ended 30 December 2011

30 December 30 June
Note 2011 2011
$ $
INCOME
Land sales i] 286 364 1,846 665
Profit on Land Disposed - 853,437
Lease revenue 130,895 309290
Interest revenue 7 48 704 56,390
Other revenue a 40873 116,453
Total Income 506,836 3,282,235
EXPENSES
Cost of sales 5] 300,000 1,006,029
Other selling costs 3] 163,149 264,769
Employee henefits expense G 370,716 1,167,827
Supplies and services 10 T4 712 1,309,018
Depreciation and amoriisation expense 11 38,319 82427
Finance costs 12 326 722 643 279
Members allowances 38,423 82,140
Property maintenance 13 421 222 841 480
(Write up)fwrite down inventory to net
realisable value 14 4 259 181 4 147 945
Total Expenses 6,492,444 9,544,894
PROFIT/{LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD {5,985,608) (6,262,659)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes in asset revaluation surplus 25 12,750 779,250
Total other comprehensive income 12,750 779 250
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE PERIOD (5,972,858) (5,483,409)

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.

Midland Redevelopment Authority

Final Report 1 July to 30 December 2011
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as ar 30 December 2071

30 December 30 June 1 July 2010
Note 2011 2011 Restated (a)
$ $ $
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 26 1,601,983 478,598 264 500
Receivables 16 BD,194 261,816 458 419
Inventories 17 2,001,751 1,554,263 26 637 592
Other current assets 18 126,854 10,762 13,968
Total Current Assets 3,810,812 2,305,439 27,374 479
Hon-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 15 580,648 266,870 365,582
Receivables - Non current 16 949 673 949 673 -
Inventories 17 54 509 249 39,766,737 11,493 830
Property, plant and equipment 19 2,266 917 2,283,580 1,551,621
Intangible assets 20 7,238 16,144 43 542
Total Non-Current Assets 58,313,725 43 583,004 13454 775
TOTAL ASSETS 62,124 537 45 G5B 443 40,829 254
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables x2 1,951,020 3,104,506 2,124 324
Provisions 23 55,366 221,809 3,560,301
Bomowings 24 - - 4 477 505
Total Current Liabilities 2,006,386 3,326,315 10,162,130
Mon-Current Liabilities
Provisions 23 31,331,163 14,765,662 14 964 627
Borrowings 24 70,995 451 64 032 071 46 454 693
Total Mon-Current Liabilities 102,326,614 TH 797,733 61,419 320
TOTAL LIABILITIES 104,333,000 82124, 048 71,581,450
MET ASSETS (42,208,463) [36,235,605) {30,752,196)
EQUITY 25
Contributed equity 14,150,000 14,150,000 14,150,000
Reserves 1,417,015 1,404, 265 625,015
Retained eamings (57,775,478) (51,789,870) (45,527 211)
TOTAL EQUITY (42,208,463 (36,235,605) {30,752,196)

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.

(a) See statement of Changes in Equity and Mote 5 - Disclosure of Changes in Accounting
Fuolicy. Estimates and Pricr Period Ermors
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the period ended 30 December 2011

Contributed Retained Total
Note equity Reserves Eamings equity
Balance as at 1 July 2010 14,150,000 &26,015  (30,427,211) (15652,106)
Prior Period Error (a) - - (15,100,000} (15,100,000}
Restated Balance at 1 July 2010 25 14,150,000 625,015  (45527,211) (30,752,106)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 778,250 (6,282,659) (5.483.408)
Prior Period - - - -
Transactions with owners in their capacity
as OWNers - - - -
Capital contributions - - - -
Other contributions by owners - - - -
Distributions to owners - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2011 14,150,000 1,404,265  (51,789,870) (36,235,605)
Balance at 1 July 2011 14,160,000 1,404,266 (51,780,870} (36,235,605)
Total comprehensive income for the 6 months 12,750 (5,885,608) (5.8972.858)
Transactions with owners in their capacity
as OWNers
Capital contributions - - - -
Other contributions by owners - - - -
Dhigtributions (o owners - - - -
Balance at 30 December 2011 14,150,000 1,417,015  [57,775478) (42,208 463)

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

{a) Prior Period Ermor comection disclosed in Mote 5. An ermmor was made in a reporting period prior to the
comparitive perod, therefore the opening comparitive balance sheet has been restated as at 1st July 2010 as
follows:

- Inventory and retained eamings were decreased by $15.1m due to overstatement of inventories against Met
Realisable Value in a prior period.
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

30 December 30 June
Note 2011 2011
] $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Proceeds from sale of land 286,364 1,846 665
Receipts from customers 147,077 694,570
Interest received 48,704 102,844
G5T receipts on sales 43613 256,890
GST receipts from taxation authority 249,158 921,327
Payments
Employes benefits (548,739) (1,174,064)
Supplies and services (813,379) (1,206, 565)
Payments for land development costs (4,184,203) (10,875,411}
Payments for land purchases - (235,000)
Finance costs (354,303) (S84 902)
GST payments on purchases (227,681) (1,102 456}
G5T payments to taxation authority (13,182) (14,402}
Other payments: {453 845 {1,006 444)
Met cash provided by/{used in) operating activities 26 (5,826,217) (12 676 949)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Proceeds from sale of investments - -
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets - {7,538)
Purchase of investments - -
MNet cash provided by / {used in) investing activities - {7,538)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Proceeds from bomowings 6,963,380 13,099,873
Payments
Repayments of borrowings - -
MNet cash provided by/{used in) financing activities 6,963,380 13 099 87 3
Het increasef{decrease) in cash & cash equivalents 1,137,163 415,386
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the period 1,045 468 630,082
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 26 2,162,631 1,045,468

The Staterment of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

1 Awustralian Accounting Standards
General

The Authority's financial statements for the & months ended 30 Decamber 2011 have been prapared In accordance with
Australlan Azcounting Standards. The term ‘Australlan Accownting Standards' refers fo Standards ang Interpretaions kssued by
the Australlan Ascounting Standard Board (AASE]

The Authortty has adogted any applicable new and revisad Australlan Accounting Standards from their oparative dates.

Early adoption of standards

The Authortty cannat aarly adogt an Australlan Accounting Standand unless specifically parmitied by TI 1101 ‘Appication of
Ausirafian AMQ Sfandards and Omer Pronsuncemeants . Mo Ausirallan mﬂg Standards that have been lssued or
amendad (but not oparative) Nawe baen eany adopted by the Authorty for the 6 month reporting period ended 30 Decamber
011

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
{a) General Statement

The financial staiements consiiiuts general purpose financlal reports that hawe been prepared In accordance with Ausirallan
Accounting Standards, the Framework, Staiements of Accounting Concepls and ofer authoritabive pronouncements of the
Australlan Accounting Siandands Boand a5 applied by Me Treasurers Instuctions. Several of hese are modMed by the
Treasurers Insnichons i vary application, dsciosure, Tomat and wording.

The Financial ianagement Act and the TrE3SUMErs INGCHoNS are legisiative Drovis|ons govaming the preparaton of financal
stalements and take precedence over the Australlan Accouning Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting
Concepts and other authortative pronouncaments of the Australlan Accounfing Standards: Board

Where modiicaton ks required and has had a matenal or significant financial efMact upon the reporied resuts, detals of that
madification and the resulting inancial efMact are discicsed In e notes o the financlal sEtements.

(b} Basis of Preparation

The finanelal statemants have baen prapared on the acensal basls of accounting wsing the historical cost comventian, excapd for
land and buldings which have been measurad at fair value.

The accounting polksiss adopted In the praparation of the financial staiements have been consistantly applied throughout il
PEnns pressnted UnisEs oNenvEs Sated,

The financial statements are presentad In Australlan dollars and all valees are rounded o the nearest dollar (3.

Judgemants made Dy management In apolying accourting pollcies Mhat have Deen made In e procsss of apohying the
ARhonty's accountng policles resuling In Mg most skgrificant effect on amounts recogrisad I the financial statements ane
disciosad In Mote 3 Judgemanis made by management In applying accounting polisias!.

The kay assumplions made conceming the fubure, and other key sources of estimation unceralrty at the end of the reporting

penod that have 3 slgnificant nsk of causing 3 matenial agjustment to M carmying amourts of assets and Nanlitiss within the
nexd financlal year are dstiosad In Mote £ 'Key sourtes of estimation uncarainty’

The financal sEEments have Desn prepared on @ going CoNCem basis.
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2041

{c) Reporting Entity

The reporting entty comprises the Migland Redsvelopment Aumonty.

The Midand Redevelopment Awhority, East Parih Redevelopmant Authority, Sublaco Redevelopment Authority and Armadale
REdEvElpmant AUharity Rave amaigamated b farm e new Mefropolitan Retevelopment AUhorty. The fnancial opsraton of
the MRA commenced on the 315t Degember 2011

{d} Contributed equity

AMSE Imerpretation 1038 Contrbution by Owners Made to Wholy-Owned Publlc Sector Erdiies requires ansfers In the
nature of aquity eontributions, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative armangements, 1o be designated by e
Govemment [the ownar) 35 contribtions by ownears (3t the ima of, or pror to transfer) before SUCh transfars can be resognised
3t equity contributions. Capital appropriatons have besn designated as contributions by owners by T BS5 Contrbugions by
Owners made to Whally Owned Public Sector Enfities and have bean cragited directly bo Confributed aguity.

The iransfer of net assets infrom other agendcies, other than as a result of 3 resbucture of adminisirative amangements, as
these are designated as contributions by owners where the ransfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.

(2] Income

Bevenue Racognifion
Revenue s measured at the fair vale of conslderation recelved or recelvable. Revenue |5 recognlsed for the major business
acihities as follows:

Sale of goods
Revanue |5 recogrisad from the sale of goods and dispasal of oMer assets whan the slgnifcant nzks and rewards of ownership
control trareter 1o the purchiaser and can be measursd rellably. In retation o the sale of land, revenue Is recognised upon
settiement or where equitable Inberest has passed.

Lease income
Leas= IncOome fom Lenancy agreements | recognised when 1 becomes due and payaile 10 e ALhanty.

Rendamng of sendces
Revenue s recognised on dellvery of the sendce to the cllent or by reference to the stage of compietion of the transaction.

Grants and aher conmrbumions
Revenue [5 recognisad at falr value when the Authorty obtalns control over the 3sseis comprising the coniributions, usualy
when cash s recelved

Inferest
Revenue ls recognised as the Imerest accrues.

Gains

Realsad and urrealised galns are wsually recognised on a net basls. These Include gains ansing on the disposal of non cument
azzets and some revaluations of non-cument asssts.

{f) Bomowing Costs

BomOWNg cOBLE 107 qUAIYING 3ssats are caphalsed net of any Invesment INCome eamed on he unexpendad poron of e
bomowings. A quallfying ass=t s an asset that necessarly takes a substantial penod of tme io get ready for B Infended wse or
sale, Dher bomowing costs are expensed when Incurmed.

The capitalisation ratz used to datemmine ihe amaount of bomowing costs to be capitallsed ks the welghtsd average Interest rate
applicable in the AUOMTY's outstanding borrowings Guring the year, In this case 5.10% [2011: 5.35%).
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

(g} Property, Plant and Equipment

Caphalsafonexpensing of 3ssels

Iltems of property, plant and equipment costing 55,000 or more are recognised as 3ssets and the cost of utllsing assats ks
expansed [epreciated) over helr useful Ives. lisms of proparty, plant and equipment costing Iess than $5,000 are Immediataty
Expansed difect 10 the Statement of Comprehensive INcome (OHNer than whers they Torm part of 3 groun of SImEar ems which
are significant In fptal).

mt'alremﬁmam‘ MeasIArement
Property, plant and equipment are intlally recognisad at cost. For Iiems of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or
for nominal cost, the cost Is thelr falr value at the date of acguiskion.

Eubseguent measurement

Sugsequent to Inklal recognition 3s an assat, the revaluation model |5 usad Tor the measurement of land and bulidings and the
£ost moded for 3l other property, péant and equipment. Land and bulidings are camled at far value lees accumulated
gepreciation (bulkdings only) and sccumulated Impaimient lesses. All other itams of property, plant and equipment are statad at
hishorical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulatad Impalrment losses.

Vihere market-based evidence 15 avallable, the falr valuz of lang and buldings |5 desermined on the Dasis of current market
buying values determined by reference to recent market transactions. When bulidings are revalusd by reference o recent
market ransactions, e accumulated depreciation Is eiminated against the gross camrying amount of the assat and the net
amount restated to the revalued amount,

In the absance of market-based evidance, fair value of land and bulldings |5 detenmined on the basls of exstng use. This
nomaly apoliss where billdings are specialsad or whers |and use |5 restricted. Falr value for axisting use assets |5 detamined
by refarence to the cost of repiacing the remalning future economic bensfs embodied In the asset, Le. Me depreciated
repiacement cost. Where Me Tair value of bulklings |5 determingd on e depreciated replacement cost basks, the QIoss camying
amourit and the accumulsted depreciation are restated proportionataly.

Land and bulldings are Independenty valued annually by the Westem Australlan Land Information Authortty (Valustion
Services) and recognised annually bo ensure that the camying amouni does not difer materially from the asset's fair value at hie
end of the raporting pariod.

The mos! signifcant assUMPons In estmating 1alr value ars made In 3ssS56iNg WhEther fo apply he exlsting use basks to
assets and I determining estmated useful e, Professional |udgement by e valier 15 requined whers the evidence doss not
prowide 3 clear disIncion Detwesn marke? type asssts and exisiing Lss assats.

Derecognition

Upon disposal or derecognition of an tem of property, plant and equipment, amy revaluafon surplus relating to that asset ks
retainzd In the assst revaluation surpius.

Assef revaluation SUpius
The assst revaluation surpius Is used 1o record Increments and decsements on the revaluation of non-cument assets as
geserioed In note 13 "Property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation
All non-ciement assats h:mng # limked usaf |ife ars E}EIEIT‘EUCHW HEPI'B:‘-EE{' owar thalr estimated useful Ives In 3 mannsar
thiat reflects the consumption of Seir future economic benafits.

Cepreciation on omer assets & calkculated using the stralght line method, wEing rates wnich are reviewed annually. Estimated
u=etul bves for each class of depraciable 3ssat ane:

Buldings A0 years
Plant, equipment and Improvements 5 - 10 years
Fumniture and equipmeant 10 years
Computer equipment 4 yEars

Land Is not depraciaiad
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2041

{h} Intangible Assets

CapitaisatonExpensing or 355815
Acquisitions of Intanglbie assats costing 55,000 or more are capitallsed. The cost of ubllsing the assets |s expensed [amortised)
ower their useful Ife. Costs Incurmed belpw thess mresholds are Immedialely expensed directly to the Statement of
L':IZH"I1|}|'E|'IE'15NE ImisoimiE.

Al acquired Intangible assets ane Inigally recognised at cost. For assefs acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost Is thelr
Tar value at the date of acquisition. The cost model |s applad for sUBEEqLENt Measwremant requiring the asset to be carrisd at
ol less any accumulated amortisation and amL.mulal:edlmpalrmem |oEEes.

Amurtisation Tor Intangible assets with finite useful Ilves & calcuiated for the perod of the expected benefit (estimated wsetul
Ie) on the stralght Ing basls using rates which are reviewed annually. All Intanglble assets corirolied by the Authorty have a
finite useful Ife 3nd 2210 residual value.

The expected saful Fvas for each class of INangiie 3sset ars:
Software™ 4 years
@) Bobware thal s rol imegral bo Te operaton o any relied hadwan

Computer Sotware
Software that Is an Integral part of the related hardware Is freated as property, plant and equipment. Sofware that Is not an
Integral part of the radated hardware I treated as an Inangibie asset Sofware costing less than 55,000 ks expensed In the year
of acquisition.

{i} Impairment of Assets

Progerty. plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for any Indication of Impalrmant at the end of each Teparting
period. Where there Is an indcation of Impalment, the recoverable amount s astimated. Where the recoveradle amount Is
lags than the camying amount, Te assat Is considered Impaired and s witten down fo Sie recoverable amount and an
Impairment loss ks r2cogrisad. As the Awhonty ks 3 not-for-profit entity, uniess an asset has been identified a5 3 surpius 3sset,
ihe recoverable amount ks the higher of an assets Tair value less costs to s2ll and depreciaied replacement cost.

The risk of Impairment Is generaily Imited t0 crcumstances whers an asset's depreciation |s materally Understated, whers the
replacement cost s faling of Where Mese 5 @ significant change In useful Mg Each reevant oass of assets |5 reviewed
annually to verify that fie accumulaied depreciation/amortisation reflects Me level of consumption or expiraion of asset's Tulre
economic benefits and to evaluate any Impalment sk from taling replacement costs.

Intanglbie assats with an Indefinlte w=eful Ife and Infanglbée assets not et avallabiz for wse are tested for Impalmant at the end
of each reporing pesfod Imespective of whether thare I any Indication of Impairment.

The recoveradle amount of assels ldentmad a8 surpius assets i he higher of fair value less cosis o sell and the present value
of fulure cash flows expecied o be derved from the assel. Surplus assels carmed at Tar value have no risk of materal
Impalirment where falr value |s detarmined by referanca o market-based evidence. Where fair value |s determinad by reference
o degraciated replacement cost, SUrplus 3sset5 ars 3t risk of IMpalrmant 3nd Me recoverabis mount |5 Measured. Surpius
assats at cost ane tested for Indieafions of Impairment af the end of each reporiing parod.

(il Leasss

The Autnodty holds ooerating leases for motor venicies. Lease payments ars expensad on 3 STaght line Dasis over the |ease
fesm a5 thiks represents e pathem of benafits derved from the leased properties.

[The Authartty recognises assets held under a finance I2ase In s statement of inanclal position 35 a receivable at an amount
equal to the net Investment In the lease, and SLDSSqUENDY r2cogrise fiNance INcome Dassd ON 3 patiem refiecing & constant
periodlc rate of retum on that net Investment).
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the pericd ended 30 December 2011

(k) Financial Instruments

In addition to cash, the Autharity has two categones of financial Instrument
» Loans and recelvabies; and

= Firancial llabillies measured at amoriised cost

These have been disaggregatad into the fallowing classes:

Financlal Asses Financlal Liabillfes
» Cash and cash equivalents » Payables
» Recelvables * WATC Bormowlngs

* Resiricied cash and cash equivalents
» Leased assat receivable

Initial recognizion and measuremant of financial Instruments |5 3t falr value which normially equates o the ransaction cosior the
Tace value. Subsaguent measuremeni Is at amoriised cost using Me effeciive Interest memod.

The falr value of shori-term recefvables and payables |5 ihe transaction cost or the face value because there Is no Intersst rate
applicable and subsequent measurement ks not required as tha effect of discounting s not mataral,

(I} Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents includes restricted cash, cash on hand and cash at
bank.

() Accrued Salaries

Accrued salarles represent Te amount due o ST but unpald at the end of the financial year. Acorued salanes are seffied
wittin a Torinight of the financial year end. The Authority conskierns e camying amount of acereed salanes fo be equivalent o
Hs riat fair vale.

(n} Inventories

Inventories comprising land held for resale ane measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Other costs Incured In
bringing Inweriories to a saleabie condltion are recorded at cost. This Inciudes costs associated with the design, devalopment
and other costs diractly attriouiabia to the land development Including where applicadie, remediation cost for contamination.
These costs wil be recovered from the sake of the developed |and. Developmeant expences capitaisad Include il costs directy
attributabée to the devesopment project

{0} Receivables

Recelvabies are recogrised and camied at ongingl Invoice amount less an allowance Tor any uncoliechbie amounts (1.
impairment). The coliectablity of receivables |s raviewsd on an ongoing basis and any recelvabias igentfed as uncolectible
are writen-off against the allowance account. The allowance for uncolactibie amounts (doubtful debls) ks raised when thars ks
cbjective evigence that the Authorfly wil not be abie to collect Its dabls. The camying amount Is equivaient o far value as It ks
due for settlement within 30 days.

ip} Payables

Payabies are recognised al the amounts payabie whan the Authonty becomsas obliged to maks fubure payments as 3 raswt of a
purchasa of assets or sarvices. The camying amount ks equivalant to Tar valus, as they ane genarally settied within 30 days.
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the perod ended 30 December 2011

(g} Bomowings

All loans payable are nitialy recognised at cost, being e Tair vale of the net proceeds recelved. Sunsequant measurement ks
at amortisad cost using the sMactve Interest rate method.

{r} Provisions

Provisions are Babdiitles of uncerain @ming of amount and are recognised where there s a present legal of constnuctive
obigation as a result of a past event and wnen he outlow of resources embodying economic Denefs |5 probabie and a relable
estimate ¢an be made of the amount of the obllgation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

{1} Provistons - Empioyes Benents

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are In respect of employess’ senvices up fo the end of fe reporiing
pericd.
[=3

The Eabliity for annual and long service leave expected to be seffied wrhin 12 months after the reporting period ks
recognised and measured al the undiscounted amounts expecied o be pald when the llabillles are settled. Annual and
long service leave axpectsd o be settied more Man 12 MoMhs afler the reporing penod s measursd 31 the present valus
of amounis expectsd to De pald when the laolitiss are setien. Leave labliiies are In respect of services provided oy
empioyees Up to the end of the reporting period.

A Nlabiiky for lang service leave |5 recognised after an employes has compleied two years of service. An achuaral
assessment of long service leave undertaken by PricelW atarhouseCoDpers 36 at 30 June 2011 determined that the labliity
measured using he short hand method was not materally different from the Nlability measured Using he present valus of
expacted futurs payments. This calcuiation I consistent with the Authorty's experfence of empioyee retention and leave
takan.

All annual lesave and unconditional long service laave provisions are classified s cument lablities 3s fe Authorty doss nok
have an unconditional right fo defer settiement of tha abillty for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Conditional
lang senics leave provisions are ciassMed 35 non-cument lablities because the Authorty has an uncondsonal right to
defer e setiiement of the Eabliity untll the employee has comphated the requishe years of sanvics.

Sick Leave
Liablites for slck leave are recognised when It Is probabie that sick keave pald In the fuiure wil be greater than the
entitiement Mat wil accnes In the Tuture.

Past history Indicates that on average, sick laave taken each repofting pesiod |6 less than the entitement acorued. This ks
expacted 10 continue In future perlods. Accordingly, It ks unilkaly that existing accumulated entiements will be used by
empioyees and no llaslity for unused sick |eave entiiements | recognised. As sick leave IS non-vesting, an expense ks
recognised In the Income statement for tis leave as It s akan.

Purchased Leave
The provision for purchased leave relates i Public Sarvice employees who have enterad Int an agreement to sct-fund up
1o an aoditonal ten weeks leave per calendar year. The provision recognises the value of salary set aside for empioyees
and Is measured at the nominal amounts axperted to be pald when the liabiliies are settied This Nabilky Is measured on
ihe samea basls 35 annual leave.

Superannuation
The Govemment Employess Superannualon Board [GESE) adminksters public sector superannuation amangements In
Westem ALSTalla In accordance with legisiative requiraments.

Eligibi= employess contribute fo the Pansion Scheme, a defined bencft pension scheme cosed th New members sincs
1537, o7 the Goid State Superarnuation Scheme (G55), 3 defined benef IEMp UM schema closad 1D NEW Members shcs
1595. Employess commencing mployment prior o 16 Aprl 2007 who wers not members of alther the Penslon Scheme or
ihe G55 bacams non contibutony Members of the West Stafe Superannuation Schema (WSS). Employess commencing
employmant on or after 16 Apdl 2007 Decame members of the GESE Super Scheme (GESES). Both of these schemes
are accumulation schames. Tm.ﬁ.l.l'ﬂ'l:lﬂ'lj' miakas concurrent contributions o GESB oni HMHHTENFH’D]’EEG In mpllm-::e
with the Commonwsalll GOvemments Superannuation Guarantee (Afministration) Act 1992, These contrbutions
extinguish the llabliky for superannuation chames In respect of the WSS and GESBS.
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

{r} (i) Provisions - Employee Benefits (continued)
The Pension Scheme and the pre-fransfer benefit for employees who transfiemed to the G55 are defined benefit schemes.
These benefits are wholly unfunded and the Eabliities for fubure paymenis are provided at the end of the reporting period.
The llablites under these schemes have been calcwated separataly for each scheme annualy Dy Msancer Human
Resource Consuting using the projected unit craglt methad.

The expacted fulure payments are dscourted to present value using market yieids at the end of the reporting period on
national gavesnment bands with tenms bo maturity that match, 35 closely as possible, the esimaled future cash outfiows.

The G55 Scheme, i WSS Scheme, and the GESSES Scheme, where the cument senvice superannuation charge s pald
by the Authorty io the GESE, are defined contribution schemes. The Babllities for current senics superannuation charges
under the GS5 Sgheme, the WSS Scheme, and the GESBS Scheme are axtinguished by the concurrani payment of
empinyer contributions to the GESE.

The Goid Siate Supsrannuation Scheme i a defined Denefl scheme for the purposes of empioyess and wholse-or-
govemment reporing. Howayer, Tom an agency perspectve, apan from the ransfer Denemis, It Is a defned contribution
pan under AASE 119.

{1} Prowvisions - Ozher

Em| nt On-Cosis

Employment on-costs, Including warkers' compensation Inswrance, are not employes bensfits and are recognised
separaiely as liabillfies and expenses when the employment to which they relate has occumed. Empioyment on-coste are
inclsded 3s part of 'Other expenses’ and are not Inciuded 3s part of the Authorty's 'Empioyes bensfits expense’. The
related IE ity 15 Incuded In “Employment on-cost provision.

Defamed Works
A provislon for defemed works is recognised when 3 coniract of sale provides for specific capkal works to be underizkan on
ihe land subsaquent to the sale of the land.

Contaminated Ses

Under the Confaminated Stes Act 2003, fe Authorky Is required bo report known and suspected contaminated sites io the
Department of Environment and Consarvation (DEC). In accordance with fe Act, DEC classifies these sites on the basls
of the risk 1o human healih, the environment and environmental valuss. Where sites are classified as contaminatad -
ramediation raguired or possibly contaminatad - Ivestigation required, the Authorfly may have a lability In respact of
Investigation or remediation expenses.

During pravipus years, the Authorty has reported four suspected contaminated sies and the EPA have Issued Ministznal
Stalements nmﬂrmlrrgm these sles 3lsn TEQ.I"E-I'E"HEEEUIH'I.

AN estimation of e £0st 10 Tamediate these SHes has Decn prepared 3long Wil aporoximats HMINGS of Me outows. This
estimation has been used o calculate a Provision for Contaminated SRes and ihe tmings usad to determing the costs
expacted 10 be Incumed during the nest 12 months. The provisian has, for the most part, resultad In an Increase In the
Authority's Inventory balance. A small pordion has been recognised 3s 3 Contaminated Siies expense due o the fand
Imvévad no longer being held by the Awthority.

Parking Contributions

A proviskon for parking contrisutions |5 recognised when a developer bacomes ooligated fo pay a parking contribution to
the Authority as a resuit of not fulfiling minimum parking requirements In thelr paricular development plans as stipulated
by the Mitiang Redevelopment Scheme 2000 . These contibutions are heid by the Authority o be appiied for the provision
of public parking, cycing, padestrian faciities or public ransport within the redevelopmant area.
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the penod ended 30 December 2011

[s) Superannuation Expense

The superanmuation expanse of the defined benefl plans ks Mmade Up of the Tollowing saments:
= Cument senvice cost

« Interast cost junwinding of the discount;

- Actianal gains and losses; and

- Past service cost.

Actuarial gaing and lesses of the defined benefit plans are recognised Immedlately 35 Income of expense In the Statament of
C[I‘I'IFI'EI'H"ISNE Income.

The superannuation expense of the defined confribution plans |s recognisad as and when e contrizutions T3l dis.

[ty Comparative Figures

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reciassfed to be comparable Wil the figures presented In the curment financial
year.

3  Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies

The preparation of inancial statements requires management 1o Make |udgemenis about the application of accounting poilcles
that have significant effect on the amounis recognised In the finandal sialements. The Authority evaluaies these |udgements
reguiary.

Imweniones
Estimaied recovery of Invemony I based on market Iinformation a5 al 30 Decembsr 2011, Evemts and circumsiancss could
change In the fubure resulting In the recoverable amount being less than the cost

Prowision fof Contamingted Siies

In detammining the Authority's laolity for remeamating cortaminated shes, assumptions regarding the level of remediation work
are made. Assumgtions Nclude soll volume based on methodical sample testing, medod of soll remedlation, enginesring
estimates and the provision of professional consuitants. Once the shes are fully assessed using environmental basting e level
of remediation woek reguirad may change requining the Babiify to be adusted.

Prowigion for Defemed Works

In d=tesmnining the Authorty’s llabiity for defermed works, the provisions of the conract of sale Tor each she s consulied o
detemine assumptions reganding the level of work required. Onge the sites ane fuly assessed the level of work required may
change requirng the Banlify to be adjustsd.

Arvica recelved from emironmental consuitants suggests that a health risk assessmant based on the prodabie buliding gesign
may reduce the requined remedation to resigiential standards onfy on exposed ground arsas rather hian the entire ske.

Provision for Parking Confrioutions

In getemining the Awhonty's llaoiiy for parking, a range of possile parking ouicomes are determined and the cost of the
utcome |5 esimaten, this oSt I5 COMpaned 10 the Paming contributions recelved from developers by detarmine if

there ks any significant difierznce. As further contribations are received and declslons are mads as to the parking outcomes to

pursue the llabiity will T2quire agjustmant.

Megative Net Assets Pasiion

The Authority nas reporied a negative net aquity pasition Bue the recogrition of the proVision for contaminaied sHes in pror
reporting periods commencing 30 June 2007 as required by e ConfSminated Stes Act 2003, Ab 30 December 2011, fotl
Iabillty recognissd since Its Introducton amount to 340 milion. The assets and lablifies of the Autharty will be the
respansiolity of the Metrpoiitan Receveiopment Authorty from 31 Decamiber 2011,
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
MHOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

4 HKey Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Authorfty has evaluated and documentad strategies to ensure 1t 8 abie to remalin wimin Its bomowing and cash capaciies
whilch Include:

= Increase land sales revanue Mirough prvate secior agreements;

» Seek additional caphal appropration or Increase bomowing capacity;

= Cost reducion program; and

» Defer capital projects.

Falr vaiue of Domosings

The Authortty racognises its Initial BOTowings amount a5 p=r [k accounting policy at fair value bafore measuring the labiity at
amortisad cost The Authority has detemmined that s Interest rate Is equal to lis Giscount rate and that the expected ming of
p3sh flows will remain conslstent over the period of the loans.

5 Disclosure of Changes in Accounting Policy, Estimates and Pricr Pericd Errors

Initial soplleation of an Australlan Azcounting Stangdard
The Authority has appied the following Australlan Accounting Standards effactive for annual reporting periods baginning on or
after 1 July 2011 that Impacted on the Auhority:

200%-< Further Amendmenis o Ausralsn Aoccuntng Standsds ansing from e Annual Improsements Project JAA2E £, 8,
o, 107, 117, 118, 136 & 139]
Under amendments io AAZSE 117, fe clxssHMoalion of Band sements of al exising Eases has been reassessed 1o
determine whether they ane In = nalure of operabing or finance keases. As eases of land & buldings recognised In
the #nancial siabements fave not been found o signBoantly expose the SAufhorky o the dsksresands atrbutable io
covtrod of kamd, fed ChEnQES 10 SCCcouning estimates have be=n incleded In e Financial Stxiements and Miotes i e
Financial Etatements.
Under amerdments i0 AASE 107, only expendiures that resul in a8 recognised asset ane e bie for cassification as
Irresting activities In the Etatement of Cash Flows. Al investing cashfiows reporied in the Auhory's Stalement of
Cash Fiows relate io inoreases in recopnised asseés.

Future Impagt of AUsirallan Accounting Standards not ve
The Authartty cannat eary adopt an Australan Accounting Siandard unless specifically pemmitiad by T1 1101 Applicaton of
Australlan Accounting Standards and Other Proncuncements. Comsequently. the Authorty has not applied early any of the
foiliowing Australlan Actounting Standards that have been issued tat may Impact the Authority. Whers applicabie, the
Authortty plans bo apply thess Austrailan Accounting Standards from thelr aopiication date.

AAZE 2005-11 Amendments fo Ausialian Accounting Standands ansihg fom AASE 0 [AAEE 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 1 Jan 2013
101, 102, 104, 142, 183, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132 136, 130, 1023 & 1030 ang
interpretations 10 & 127,

The amendment fo A4SE T Fnancia insiaments: DISCoSUnes peguines modkication i the
gisciosure of catspani=s of fnancla assefs. The Avthorfy does nof espect any Snanchi
Impact when e Sancard i frstapolisd. The fisciosure of Cafegores of francial Fssets in
e pofes wil Chanpe

AMIE 2008-12 Amencments fo Austafan Accountng Sfandards (AASEs B 0, 108, 110, 192, 710, 133, 1 Jan 2011
137, 130, 1023 & 1037 and inferprefations I, 4, 16, 1030 8 1052

This Standad inioduces @ rumber of Emminology changes Thee & no Snancis impact
o e Authonty resulting frowm the application off s revised Siandan
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

5 Disclosure of Changes in Accounting Policy, Estimates and Prior Pericd Ermrors |Continued)

AM2B 10s3 Appicaion of Tiers of Austalan ADCounEng Siandands 1Jul I-I:I 1z
This Standard esisblishes a dferental fisncial reporting fmmework consisiing of bwo Gers|
of eporting Fequirements for preparing generl pupose Snancial saiements.

Tz Standard dices not Rave any Snancihl impact on the Autharty. Howevwer E may
disciosurss In the finandal siziemeniz of Fe Auforty © e reduced discosuns
requiremenis apply. DTF has mot yet determined the applicyton or the potential mpact
the new Standard for agenciss.

AABH 2040-2 Amendments 0 Ausirallsn  Acooening Silandands arsing from Reduced Discosuns 1 Jul 2043
Reguine ments

This Standard makes amendments o many Austalan Accountng S@ndards, I1|:=.|\:h|:||
Inberpretations, o Introduce: reduced disciosuns requirements Rt thess pONoURCEMents
for applicabion by Ceriain hypess of enities.

The= Standand ks ot expecied b have any Snancial impact on the AathorEy. However this
Standard may reduce some nole disciosures in financial sistements of e Authorty. OTF
|has mof yef debermined the application or the pofential mpact of & amendments o these]
Standarnds for apencies.

AM3B 2010-5 Amendments o Ausirallas Accountieg Standards [AAZE 1, 3, 4, 5, 101, 107, 112, 118, 1 Jam 2011
119, 124, 132, 133, 134, 137, 139, 140, 1023 & 1038 and InErpreations. 112, 115, 127,
132 & 10432] (Ociober 20100

Thiz Shandard introduces & numbsr of kerminceogy changes as well as minor ureseﬁauunl
Jchanges o @ nofes fo the Francal Staiements. There Is no financial mpact on the
Authorty Fesultineg from the appiicabion of this revised S@ndard.
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

5 Disclosure of Changes in Accounting Policy, Estimates and Prior Period Errors (Continued)

AATE B Financal Instruments 1Jan 2013
This Standard supsersedes AASE 132 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measwrement, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.

The Standard was reissued on 8 Dec 2010 and the Authority is cumently determining the
impact of the Standard. DTF has not yet determined the application or the potential impact
of the Standard for agencies.

AASE 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASE 8 (December 2010) 1Jan 2013
[AASB 1,3, 4, 5, 7,101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139,
1023 & 1033 and Interpretations 2. 5. 10, 12, 18 & 127]

This Amending Standard makes conseguential adjustments to other Standards as 3 result
of issuing AASE 9 Financial Instruments in December 2010. DTF has not yet determined|
|the appfication or the potential impact of the Standard for agencies.

AASE 1054 Australian Additional Dischosures 1 Jul 2011
This Standard, in conpnction with AASE 2011 1 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arisng from the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project, removes discloswre
requirements from other Standards and incorporates them in a single Standard o achieve
convergence betwesn Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards.

AASE 20111 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arsing from the Trans Tasman 1 Jul 2011
Convergence Project [AASE 1, 5, 101, 107, 108, 121, 123, 132 & 134 and Interpretations 2,
1128 113]

This Amending Standard, in conjunction with AASE 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures,
remowes disclosure reguirements from other Standards and incorporates them in a single
Standard to achieve conwergence betwsen Australian and Mew Zealand Accounting|
Standards.

Comection of prior period emor

An ermor was made in a reporting period prior to the comparative pericd, therefore the opening comparative balance sheet has
been restated as at 1st July 2010.

There is no impact to the comparative statement of comprehensive income as the change has besn made in the cpening
retained eamings.
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES T THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

30 December 30 Jume
2011 2011
$ 5
30 Decembsar Restated 30 June
& Trading profit / (loss) 1 i
Sales 286,364 1,846,665
Cost of sales:
Opening Inventory (41,321,000) (36,131,422}
Purchases 43,171,098) (12,277,524}
Dafamad works 114,704 382,038
Contaminated sites {16,692,757) 3,347,536
Cast of Finance Lease - 202,297
[Wirtte: upjAweite down of Inventony b met reallsaiie valuse 4,258,181 4,147,945
156,E11,000) [42.327,029)
Ciosing Inventory 56,511,000 41,321,000
Cost of sales {300,000) (1,008,029}
Other seling costs (153,143} (264 TEO)
[453.143) 1270, 738}
Trading profit / (loss) (1767651 STeEeT
T Interest revenue
Imerest on bank accownts 17,734 55,069
Imerest on business activity statement nafund 3N
Imerest Trom finance lease 2683 -
4B 704 55,380
& Other revenus
Development apolication fees E3TS 4825
RECOUp Of EXPENSES 32541 40,481
Other Income ZBsr 71,147
A0373 116,453
3 Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries ™ 32473 1.067.023
Superannuation - defined corribution plans ™ 45385 100,503
Superannuation - gennad benem pians ™ - -
370716 1,167 526

i) il e ke of this frings Defesll i the empiyes ChE the Finge Deneli 1 comonan, M enllEments Holding soperannusion conmisutkon

E T

(i) Dot contribution plans inclce Vet Stabe, Gold State and GEES Super Soheims | conrbuons paid])

(2 It @ SLEe TR T o SoniTiouton Sompdnent

ErmpeEmen of-conts SUCh oS worken ! compsnsalion s ane nohsded al nobe 10 ' Supobes and sersioes’

Emplevrment on-costs Rabilny & inciuded of note 23 Frovsons’

10 Supplies and services

Arvertising and public relations
Consultants and contractors
Commiunkzatons
Corsumables

Malntenanca

Motor vehicies and fravel
Irsurance premiums

Other costs

25558 50,787
353,542 933,778
11.210 20,990
58,177 78,504
- 456
24,844 £39,650
44579 93,674
45502 21,137
L B el 18,015
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MIDLAND REDEVELCOPMENT AUTHORITY
MHOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

30 December 30 June
2011 2011
$ $
11 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Building 12,750 19,250
Furniture and equipment 3,500 7,790
Comparter aguipment 1,842 5,540
Plant, equipment and Improvements 11,312 3,459
Total gepredation 20,413 55,029
Ampatisation
Comparter softwars E 905 27 F35
Total amariisation R i1
Total gepreciation and amortisation iR g
12 Finance costs
Finance cosis expensed 326,722 543,279
Finance costs capitallsed 1,306,890 2753116
133,612 3,358,595
12 Property maintenance
Progerty repairs and manienance 281,042 585,312
Security 120,180 255,145
Total properiy maintenance expense 4120 841,460
14 [Wirite up)iwrite down inventory to net realisable value
[Wirte upwTiie down ImvesTiony ba net realisable vaws ™ 4,253,181 4,147,945

) bn 2301112 thes arssentirren b rosl ool valoe resiled oo willa-doren agained the ol of irrseniory
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

30 December 30 June
2011 20141
% $
15 Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Mor-curment
Parking Contibution Funds ™ =50.548 565,870
(@) Camh hesd i his sccoun! B 1o Be wesd oy Tor ths pupoke of oviding pule parking, cpcing and pedesiien Tedlbes of pubh: Darape whin the
e elopimedl dfgd
16 Receivables
Current
Trade geniors 17,944 18,016
Sundry detiors - -
Lease assat ™ 52,015 155,047
GET recelvable 10,234 67,753
Allpwance for Impalment of recelvabies - -
30,152 261 816
Reconclliation of changes In the allowance Tor impaimment of recelvablas:
Balance at the start of year - -
Diouoiful debis expense racognised In the Income statament - -
AmMpunis wiitien off during the year - -
Amount recovered during the year - -
Balance at end of year - -
The Authorily does not hold any collateral as security or oiher credit enhancements relaiing o recelvables.
Hon-Cument |
Lease assal S405T3 949 673
EEENETE] 948 673
) The Authodlly eneied inlo @ Financs lesse duing 200011
30 Decambsar Rastated 30 Junse
17 Inventories 2011 2011
Current 2,001,731 1,554,283
Non-cument (o) o4 508249 30766, 737
56 511,000 £1.321,000
Conslsting of:
Land held for resale:
- Land haidings 25.480,082 25 480,082
- Development costs caphallsed ™ 114,943,796 113,304,527
- Prosision for contaminated sies 26,084 814 5401514
- Wirtie Down Inventony to Net Realisabie Value (k) (T1,616,923) (67,357, 748)
- Bormowing costs capitalised 14,376,286 12959,073
- Allpcated to cost of goods soid (52,562,750) (52,262, 750)
- Allocated to Finance Lease (204, 299) 204,259}
Total Inventorias 56,511,000 41,321,000

(@) Inchaies payment 1o oy Sovemmen Agenciss Tor devwebapmend cosls incumed during 1598663001 pricr fo the Esiabdshment of the Ml

() Pricr vear Figures harve Been resiabed. see Siabement of Chandes in Bouly
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MIDLAMD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the pernod ended 30 December 2011

30 December 30 June
2011 2011
5 ]
18 Other current assets
Pregayments 126 854 10,762
19 Property, plant and equipment
Land
AL fair vae ™ 1,110,000 1,110,000
Accumulated mpalment losses - -
1,110,000 1,110,000
Bulidings -
Al Tair value 1,020,000 1,020,000
Accumulaied depreciation ™ - -
Accumulated impalmient losses — -
1,020,000 1,020,000
Eurmiture: and equipmeani
Abcost Tran 77,602
Accumulaiad gepreciation {41.779) {33,269)
Accumulated mpalment losses — -
36022 3533
Al cost 414632 41,632
Accumulated depreciation {40,047) {38,208)
Accumulated impalment losses - -
1585 3,427
Bl ipment and Im menis
Al cost 226230 225,250
Accumulaiad depreciation {12E6.,9432) {115,530)
Accumulated mpalment losses - -
e 110,520
2,256,917 2 283,580

) Friahedd i and baoings weie evalied o @l 1 ey 2011 by the Wealiem Acamaisn Land Infomation Soholy (Welien Servioss] The vl wee
i ALIng thi S eonths, efced 31 Disamia 2001 Grd recojiial §f 31 Deosrbar 20711, Thi G wakis of o B G bulohngs hies D ol s

S S T

i) P 1 Ehs rwimliisition of BOiRIngS thi Sociimibates depecaon & oadled o M sl o e T nel Sl Simount & neslated 1ot fewskesd aimou
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the penod ended 30 December 2011

Reconcillatlons
Feconciliations of the camying amounts of property, plant and equipmeant at the baginning and end of the reporting perod ane
set out In the tble below.

Land Bulkiings Fumiture & o LiEr Frant, Equiprmeent & Tol
Equipment Equipment Improvemients
30 December
2011 5 5 5 5 H] 5
CarTping amount _
at siaet ol e 1,110,000 1,020, D00 30,533 3426 110,621 2,283,580
Bt - - - - - -
D et - - - - - -
R abuation
o TR T - 12,75 " " " 127
Ceprerciation - (12,750} (3.509) (1,842) 111.312) (29,413}
\Wrte-off of imsets - - - - - -
e s - - - - - -
Carying amount -
at el i v 1,110,000 1,020, D00 36,024 1,585 99,308 2266917
Land Bulkings Fumiture & o LiEr Fiant, Equiprment & Total
Equipment Equipment Improvemients
30 June 5 5 5 3 5 5
CarTying amdount - -
ai wiart of year E00.000 770,000 47,313 B.965 125,542 1,551,821
A - - - - 7,538 7,538
D et - - - - - -
R i
incrementi desrement] 510,000 269,250 - - - 779,250
Doipreciaion - {19,250} (7. 7ED) {5,540) 122.453) {55,029}
Wirle-off of imets - - - - - -
TS TR it - - - - - -
CarTying et -
ai end o year 1,110,000 1,020,000 30,533 3425 110,621 22583,580
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

30 December 30 June
2011 2011
$ $
20 Intangible assets
Com softwars
Al cost 126,835 126,535
Accumulaiad amortisation {118,597} {110,521}
Accumuiated mpalment losses - -
7238 16,144
Reconcillation
Camying amount at start of yaar 16,142 43,542
Additions - -
Dispesals . -
Revaluation Incrementsd|decrameants) - -
Amprtisation {E.305) (27,338)
Wirfie—of of assels - -
Impalrment losses - -
Camying amount at end of year 7.238 16,124

21 Impaiment of assets

There were no Indications of Impalrment to property, plant and equipment and Intanglbie assats at 30 December 2011,

The Authority held no goodwill or Intanglole assets with an Indefinke useful e during the reporting perod. Af the end of the
reporting period thens were no Intanginle assets not yet avallaole for use.

All surplus assets at 30 December 2011 have aither baen classified as non-cument assets held for sale or writben-off.

22 Payables

Curent

Trase payaoks 420,005 437,184
GET payable - 20,265 5,343
Audit fees 20,727 34,000
ACCTUSD EXpensas 1,196,432 2,165,272
Coniract retentions 231,032 230,821
Income In advance 103,090 231,885

1,651,020 3104 505
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

30 December 30 June
2011 2011
$ $
Z3 Provisions
Curmant
Em benefits prowision
Arnual leave ™ 34,304 53,341
Long senvice leave ™ 12,867 167,381
Other provisions
Empéoyment on-costs ™ B.135 1,077
Diefarrad Works ™ - -
Comaminated Sies ™ -
5t 365 221,508
Non-curmant
Em benefits provision
Long senvice keave 46020 78,901
Superannuation & - -
Cthier provisions
Employment on-costs ™ £.313 g2
Diefarrad Works @ 4,502 950 4717635
Contaminated Sies ™' 26,084,500 SADN, 14
Parking contrioutions ™ 580,543 565,570
31,331,163 14 TES BE2_

[3) Annual leave lablities have been classifed as cument as there ks no wncondtonal gt 1o defer seftiement for at least 12
manths afier the reporting perod. Assessments Indicate that actual setiement of the llabliiies will occur within 12 months.

30 Decembser 30June
20 2011
¥ $
Within 12 moeths of the end of the reporting perod 20,044 41,131
Miare man 12 months afer the reporting periad 5260 12,210
34,304 53,341

(@) Long sedvice leave lablites have Dean classiMed a5 cumant whenz ther 5 no unconditional Might bo defer seffament for at
l2ast 12 monts aner the reporting penod. Assessments Indicate hal actual seltiement of the lablifdes will ocour within 12

TFEariins.
30 Decembser 30June
2011 2011
¥ ¥
Within 12 moeits of the end of the reporting perod - 55,231
Miare Man 12 months afer the reporting periad 28,887 151,061
588587 2456 292

¢} The settement of annual and long senvice leave labiIes gives rse o the payment of employment on-costs Including
WOMKErs' compansation premiums. The provision 1s the presant valee of expectsd future payments. The assoclated expense,
apart from the unwinding of the discount {inance cost), Is dsciosed In note 10 *Supgliss and services”.

) Defermed works are classied a8 CUITEnt when te Works are schaouled fo oocur wimin 12 manihs.

fi2) Contaminated siies ane classiled 35 current when the works are scheduled o ooour within 12 months.

[T) Paming contrioulons are classified as cument whan the works are scheduled o ooour within 12 months.
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the penod ended 30 December 2011

30 December 30 June
2011 2011
$ 5
{g) Defined benefit superannuation plans
The amounts recogrised In Me Statement of Comprehensive Income are as follows:
Penzlon Scheme
M) Doisc e 3 S
i

Curment senvice cost
Imerest eost [ursinding of e discount)
Met achuarlal inssesgalns) recognised
Total Inciuded In empioyes beneflis sxpense [ses note 3)

The amounis recignised In e Stabtement of Financial Position are 3s Toliows:

Present value of unfunded obllgations
Liabliiy In the Statement of Financlal Position

A1

Reconciliation of the urfundad labliity recognisad In the Statement of Financlal Posltion 5 35 follows:

Liablifty at the start of the year
Current senice cost

Inerest cost [Urwinding of e discount)
Met achuarial Inssesgalns) recognised
Benefts pald

Liablity at the end of the year

The principal actuarial assumptions L=ed (expressed 3 weighted averages) ware as follows:

Dlscount rate 5.25% 52E%
Fuiure salary Increases 4.50% 4.50%
Hiatoric Summary & miths to Dec 2011 201 2010 2009 2008
¥ 5 3 $ $
Pre-transfar benefit — Gold State Elq:ll!mﬂuill:lﬂ Schamea:
PFresani valuz of unfunded obligatior - 14 18
Falr vaiue of plan assets - - -
Denct In Schema - 14 18
Experiancs adusimeanis arsing on plan laplites
- 2 7l 3
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 30 December 2011
Movements In other provislons

Movements I each class of provisions duing the financial year, other Man employes benafits, are set out baiow.

Em ent on-cost provision
Camying amount at start of perod 1,463 2,288

Additional provisions recognised 12,641 (E19)
Fayments/other sacrifices of economic Denefis - -
Unwinding of the st -
Carrying amount at end of pariod 15,110 1,455

Provision for Defemed Works
Carrying amount at start of perod 4,717,685 5,093,724
Anditional provisions recogrised - -
Payments/other sacrifices of aconomic benefts {114,705} (362,039
Unwinding of the discout — -
Carrying amount at end of pariod 4 502 950 4,717,685
30 December 30 June
2011 2011
$ $
Proision for Comaminated Sites
Carrying amount at start of perod 9,401,816 12,749,450
Additional provisions recognised 16,693,000 2,110,338
Paymentsother sacrifices of economic benefTs [21a) (5, 457,972)
Unwinding of the discout - -
Carrying amount at end of pariod 26,084,600 5.401,816
Provision for Parking Contributions
Carrying amount at start of perod 566,870 365,582

Anditional provisions recognised 13,773 201,288
Fa}menta'nmersamnnes al economic Denefiis -
Linwinding of the dscount - -
Camying amount at and of pariod B0 54T SEa 80

24 Bomrowings

Curen

WATC Liguidity Faciilty - -

HMor-cumant

WATGC Portfallo Lenging Amangements 70,95, 451 54,032,071

Total Bomowings 70,855,251 B4038,071
i 30 December  Restatsd 30 Juns

25 Equity 2011 2011

Enquity represents the residual Interest In e net assets of the Authonty. The Governement holds the equity Imerest In the
Auwthorty on behalf of Tie community. The asse! revaliation surplus represents that porlon of eguity resuliing from the
revaluation of non-curment assets.

Conirimnsd equity

Balance at stant of period 14,150,000 14,150,000
Contribufans Dy owners - -
Dilsiniufions io owners - -
Balance at end of period 14,150,000 14,150,000
Feserss

Azsef Revaluation Resene

Balance at stan of period 1,404,265 625,015
et revaluation Increments | [decremanis - -
Land - 510,000
Buliding 12,750 263,250
Balance at end of period 1,417,015 1408 255
Retalned eamings

Balance at stan of period (51,789,870) (45.527.211)
Prior period adustments - -
Resul far the pariod 15,885 508) [E.262 659}
Balance at end of period (57 775, 478) (51780 BT O}
Total Equity at end of pered (42,208, 463) [36,235,605)
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NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

30 December 30 June
2011 2011
$ $

26 Motes to the Cash Flow Statement
{a] Reconclliation of cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown In the Satement of Cash Flows |5 reconcled to the relabed ems In the
Statement of Financial Position as follows:

C:ash and cash equivalents 1,601,983 478,598
Festricted cash and cash equivalents 580,543 566,570
2,182 631 1,045,465
{o] Feconcliiaion of Profit{Loss) io net cash fiows provided byiused In) operating acivites
Profmiss) {5,985,608) (£.262,659)
Mor-cash Hems:
Depraciation and amoriisation expense 38,319 62,427
Loss on disposal of non-cument assets - -
Fluad a55&ts written o -
Bad debt witen o -
[Reversal ofimpalmment of recatvablss -
CUITEN recalvatiss (3) 104,103 105,656
Cumen Invaniones (447 459) 40,183,329
Other cument assets (116,122) 3,206
Mon-Cument raceivables - (943,673}
Mon-curment inveniories (14,742,512) (43,372,507}
Curmen payabies (3) {1,127,8785) 1,001,526
Curmen proviskons (156,443) (3,338,492)
Men-curmeni provisions (b 16,565,501 [158,955)
Change In GST receivables/payakies (c) 51,310 68,194
Met cash provided by / (L=2d In) operaing actvites [ ] L5 a,088)

{3} Mote Mat the Austraing Taxation Offcs (ATO) receivable'payabie In respect of GET and the recatvablepayable In respect
of the £ale fpurchase of non-curent assats ane not Includad In thess Iemes 35 they do nat form part of the reconcling tams.

[} This I the nat GST paldireceived, le. Cash transactons.

fi} This revarses out the GST In receivables and payables.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

30 December 30 June
2011 2011
¥ $

2T Commitments
{a) Capial expenditure commitnanis

Capital expendliure commitments, being conracied capital eapendiure additional to the amounts reported In the financial
statements, are payable as Tollows:

Wiithin 1 year 1,324,473 2697, 707
Later fhan 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
Later fan 5 years - -

1324475 2697 70T

The capital commiiments Inciude amounis for
Inweniores 1324 475 2697, 707

[0} Mon-cancelabie operating leass commitmants

Commitments for minlmum lease payments are payabie as Toilows:

Within 1 year 14,203 21,00
Later man 1 year and nok later than 5 years 4,689 3,439
Later man 5 years - -
18,892 30,500
[z} Leass commitments receivanie
Minkmum lease commitments payabie to the Autodty are as follows:
Within 1 year 153,414 274,832
Later man 1 year and not later than 5 years 55,495 17,223
Later man 5 years - -
218,309 292 055

These commitments ane all Inciusive of GST.
28 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Comtingani Liablliies
There were no contingent llablifes that would materally affect the Authorty.

LContingan Assals
Thers were no contingent assets that would matenaily afmact the Autharity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

289 Events occurring after the end of the reporting period

ND mahers or occurances have come 1o the anemtion of e Authority up to the present tme which would materially affect the
financial statements or disclosures therein or which are lkely bo fo materaly affect the fubure resuits or opaerations of the
Authorzy.

The Mifland Redevaiopmant Autnodty, East Pertn Radeveinpment Autharty, Sublace Retevelopment Aumodty and Amadale
Redaveiopment Authority have amalgamatad to form the new Metmpolian Redevelopment Authorty. The financial operasion of
tha MRA commencad on tha 315t Dacember 2011,

30 Explanatory statement

This statement provides detalis of any signincant vanations betwesn the 12 month estimates and actuals for the poor nancal
year compared against the & month actual resuiis for the cument reporing period. Significant variations are considensd to be
thase greater than 10% and $100,000.

Significant varlances between estimats for the 12 months and actual for & monthe to Decamber 2011

30 Decembar
12 montn 2011
Hots Entimats Actusl] Varlance
¥ ¥ 5
Land sales m £,555,000 786364 (£.278,536)
Coet Of Sales m 4,987,500 300,000 (4,557,500)
Other seling costs ) 290,500 152,149 [127,351)
Empioyee benefis expense [ 936,213 IT0.TIE [565,427)
SUppIEs and SENVICES [ 1,557 421 574,712 [o&2,709}
Finance costs [ 756,300 326,722 (450,07}
Frogerty maintenance [ 748,500 421222 [328,278)
[Wrtta Lp)/wTtie dowm Inventony to net reallsanie valus () - 4,259,181 4,253,181
Explanation of warancss:
M} Land sales/Cost of sales
The varlance Is due o defiermed and sakes
i} Other seil :Em Beneflis - Suppiles and Senvices; Finance Costs and Mainienance

The vanances are due o the achal data eing for & months insiead of 3 Tull year
EXPENSS ng ¥e

value

Midland Redevelopment Authority Final Report 1 July to 30 December 2011 46



Notes to the Financial Statements

Final Report 1 July to 30 December 2011

MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
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For the period ended 30 December 2011

Significant vartances betwesn actual results for the year ending Juna 2011 and & months ending Dec 2011

T Decarmbar T Juna
Nots 2014 2011 Varlanca
3 % §
Land sales in 256,364 1,646,665 {1.560,301)
Profi on Land Dlsposed i . 853 437 [953,437)
Lease revenus iy 130,555 309,250 (178,395}
0t of 5ales in 00,000 1,00€,029 [7D5,023)
Other seling costs iy 153,149 254,769 (101,620}
Empioyes benefis expense iy 370,716 1,167,827 (797,111}
SUppIes and SErvices iy 574712 1,300,018 [734,306)
Finance cosis iy WETZ2 £43.279 {315,557}
Property maintenance i 421222 B41.460 [420,238)
Explanation of vanances:
[} Land sales and cost of sales
The varanee 5 due o defermad Land s3ks.
(¥} Profton Land Disposed
The Awtharty recognised a fnance lease during the prior year.
(1N} Lease ravenue; Othar Sell . Em Beneflis Expense; Supplles and Sendces; Financs Costs and P
Malnkenance
The varances are dus to the curment reporting period dats Deing for & months instead of 3 ful year
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

31 Financial instruments

{a) Fnaneial Risk Managemant Objeciives and Policies
Finanglal Instrements hald by the Authorty are cash and cash equivalents, Domowings, feceivables and payables. The
Authority has Imited exposure to inancial nsks. The Awthorty's owverall Msk management program focuses on managing
the risks Idaniifed below,

Credlt risk
Credlt risk arises when there Is the pessibiity of the Authorftys recelvables defaulting on their conractual cbligations
resuiting In finandial loss 1o the Authorfy.

The MaxMLm eXposurs 1 oredlt risk at end of thie raporting pericd In relation to @ach cass of racognisad Tnancial assets
s the gross camying amount of those 3s5ets INGUSE of any provisions for IMpalrment 35 shoan In the tabie at note 31(z)
Fnanclal Instrument Discdosures and note 16 Recseivables.

The Hl.m'l]l'ﬂ]' I'EB-FH:‘HBE- In m1ﬂm&ﬂ'ﬂ[ﬂ&&mp€mﬁ6 and seMvices are made o cusimers with an
aporopriate credit history. In addtion, recelvable balances ars monitored on an ongoing basis wim the resut Mat the
Aufhority's expesure to bad debts |s minimal. At the end of the reporting period there were no significant concenirations of
eradit rsk.

Liguigity risk
Liguigty ek arises whan the Authorfty |5 unabic by meet Its financial ooligations a5 Mey fall Sue. The Autharty Is exposed
o liquidity risk through Its trading In the normal course of business.

The Authority's objective |s to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibillty through the use of
borTowings. The Authorfty has appropeate procedures to manage cash fiows by monfonng forecast cash fows 10 ensLure
hat sumcsent funds are avalabie fo mest s commitments.

Mearket rzk
Market risk Is the fsk Mat changes In markst prices such 35 foreign exchange rates and Imterest rates wil affect the
Authority's Income o the value of s hoidings of inanclal Instruments. The Autharty does not ade In foreign cumency and
Is not matesialy exposad o oihes prica nsks. The Autharty's exposure i markat risk for changes In Intarest rates refate

primariy to e long-tem debt obligations.

The Authority's bamowings are &l cbizined trough the Wesism Australlan Treasury Comporation (WATC) and are at fixed
rates with varying maturiges, The rsk Is managed by WATC Tirough porifolio diversficaZon and variation In maturity dates.
Cithar than s detalled In the IMerest rate sansitity analysis tE0ie 3t ol 31(z), he ALhonty & not exposed to Intarest rate
MEk Dacause 3part from minor 3MoUMS of festricied cash, 3l oiher cash and cash equivaients and restricted c3sh are non-
Interast bearing and Nave No bOMOWINGS oiher than the TI=3SUrer's advance (noninterest baaring), WATC bormowings and
finance |eases (M Intenagt rie).

[b) Categories of Financial Insiruments
In acdition to £3=h, the camying amounis of each of the folowing categories of financial assats and nancial Naolikies at the
end of the reporting penod are 3s follows:

30 December 30 June
2011 2011
¥ $
Fimanclal Asssts

Cash and cash equivalents 1,601,963 473,598
Resmicted cash and cash equivalents 550,543 564,570
Loans and recelvables (a) 60,960 174,063

Fimancial Llabilitlies:
Fimancial [labiities measured 3t amortised cost (D) T2 556,737 67,131,234

(@) The amouni of koo and reoskabes eociedes SET eoovenable from e AT (slahdony recsrvabie’)

T2 Thee dmelint o Mindncial bt Moo of amoised codl eocices SET payaie io The ATC (Slaluory il bis),
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

Inierest rake 5ens dn &
The following iabie represents a SWmmany of the Inizrest rate sensiiivity of the Authoriy's inancial assess and labiiiies at
the end of the reporting perod an the Surpius for the pariod and aquity for 3 100 basls point I Inberest rates. It Is assumed
that the change In Interest rates ks hald constant throwghout the reporting period.

-100 basks points

+100 basis points

Carmying Amouni Surpius EquEy Surplus Eiguity
20 Dece=mber 2011 000 00 000 000 FO00
Finanolal Ascabe
C-azh and Cxsh eguivaients 1,602 [16.02] (a0 g0z 16.02
Reczivabiles g o183 1= -] 0.is o.1e
Resricted cash and cash,
aquiy akenis a1 [5.81]1 581 = 5.81
Repsivables - mor-cument 550 19.5001 (=R 9.0 5.50
Finanolal Lishiitsc
Faiyabies 1,57 12.71 1am 1871} 18.71)
Bomowings 70,995 09.35 T09.95 Foa.55) [F09.35)
Total increase) Decrease ) 55E.15 EZE.15 [655.15] [538.16)

-100 bask poinés +100 basls polnis

Carmying Amouni Surpius EquEy Surplus Equity
30 Jures 2011 F000 00 ¥000 #000 FO00
“Finznolal Aocets
Cash and oxsh eguivaients 479 4.75]1 4.3 473 479
Receivables ig n.As] m1E] ois 0.1g
Fesiricied cash and cash
equivalents E&T E.ET} [55T] ST 5.87
FRecsivables - pon-Ccument 250 [9.501 9.5 250 9.50
Firanalal LishiitHac
Fayabkes 3,085 3053 0 (3023 130.5%)
Bormowings 4,032 54_!].!2 5-11:!!;2 |5-1l:l.!;2| $5£0.32)
Total Increase ! Decrease ) EE117 B51.4T7 [EE1.171 {ES1.17)

Falr values

All Tnancial assets and labilities recognised In the Saemant of Financial Posiion, wheher they are carmed at cost or Talr
vallue, are recognised at amounts Mat represent a reasonable approximation of falr value uniess ohensise stated In the

applicabla nobas,

32 Remuneration of members of the accountable authority and senior officers

Remuneration of membsars of the accountabie authorty

The number of members of the accountable authorly, whose tofal of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary beneftts and
other benefiis Tor the reporting period, fall widin the Toliowing Dangs are:

30 Decambar 30.June
$ 2011 2011
0 - 0,000 4 .
10,001 - 20,000 1
20,001 - 30,000 - 1
The toial remunaration of the members of the aceountabis authorty 538,473 $B2,140

The toial remumeration Includes the superannuation expense Incumed by the Authorty In respect of members of the

accountanle aumornty.

No memiers of the accourtadle auhonty are memibers of the Pansion Schemes.
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MIDLAND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 December 2011

Remuneration of senlor officers
The mumibser of senlor officars, othar than senlor ofMcers I'EFI':I'IEI] 3= mambers of the accouniabla al.l'l'IlZI'll}', who=2 tolal of fess,
salaries, superannuation, non-monetary banefts and ofhar benefts for the reporing perod, Tl within the follewing bands ars:

30 Dacembsar 30 Jung
$ 2011 2011

100,001 - 110,000 1

120,001 - 130,000 -

140,001 - 150,000 -

150,001 - 160,000 - 2

150,001 - 170,000 1 -

200,001 - 210,000 - -

210,001 - 220,000 - -

220,001 - 230,000 - 1
The toéal remuneration of sanlor afMcers 5171,593 $155 277

The sUpEranruation INcided hiere regresants the superannuation xpenss Incurrsd oy the AUthodty In respect of senlor oMcers
other Man senlor oicers repored 35 Members of e accountaiie Juhorty.

33 Remuneration of auditor
Femuneration pakd or payabée to the Audtor General In respect of the audit for the cument inancial year s as follows:

Auditing the accounts, financial sEements and key performanca Indicalors 323,000 334,000

34 Related bodies and affiliated bodies

The Aumorty does not provide amy assistance 1o other bodies which would deem them 10 be regamdad as reiated or amiiated
bodles unger the defini@ons Included In Treasuners Instruction 251 Related and AMiiaed Bodies.

35 Supplementary financial information
Wirfie-ofTs

Public property weittan-off by the Boand during the finansial year 50

|

Losses of punlic moneys and pubdlc and ofer property through theft or default - -
Amount recovered - -

Gifts of public progeny
Gifts of public proparty provided by the Authority - -
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e Financial Instrament Cisclosures

Comt Flick and Imisrest Rage Fish Exposure:

The Toloraing Bbis dscioses Authorty's. maximum esposune o oedi Fsk, inferest @b =mosunes and the ageing analysis of Trandal xssets. The
Author®y's masimum exposuns o credit sk at the =nd of e reporfing period k= the camying smount of francial sssets 3s shown beiow. The tabis
dscioses the ageing of Snancial xsselk that are past due Bt nof Impairsd and Impained Snancial assels. The b = based on inforation provided fo
senior management of the Authoriy.

The Aurthority does not hoid amy codateral a5 seourity or ofer oredit enifanoements reiating o the Snancial assets | folds.

Thie Awrthorty does nob hold amy Snancial ssselts that Fad o have their fermes. renspobisbed ot woukd Fove othenstse resulbed Inther being past due or

Impesired.
imeract rade axpocurss ard ageing araheclc of Arancial sccats
L i BT ] Pl S ot =l
W phsct
Srrmmgm
Effecia Famd Varmbie Pézr] | rred
I-imr ot Caryng  interesl  interesl  Irbenesd U3 - Br, Mo ey fnandel
Hutm Arrouet Fearba fute  Bewicg) monfism  mosEs 12 yees 23 years 34 years 45 pears & g e
L $00i1 $000 $000 S0 S0 S0 2] 2] 2] -] -] 000
Einercol Saseats
3 Decambar TE
Camh ard cush sourealeri ] 1,850 - 1 - - - - - - - -
Fecayubies - Curent ™ - 3] - - M g1 ] - - - - - -
Fleuiriched cas™ and cash spuhveionts
L i) - - - - - - - - - - - -
e - Hon-Cusent 5 8 et ] - - - Fis ) raj 4 re] - - -
nana nanans nans nanans nans nans na nanan
FI. 7] [=51] LA ] A1 F=1] ri] FLE] Fe] - - -
38 June TN
Camh wrd cash aguivelenis & e 4'a - Eh - - - - - - - - -
Fecavubies - Curent ™ - B ] - - 174 174 - - - - - - -
Flrsiricied cas® @ cexh soohesionis
] & B - - - - - - - - - - - -
Fpcaubie - Hon-Cusent ™ 5 58 i ] feni) - - - ryl ] ra] ron] 56 - -
10 e L) 174 174 - ral] ra] ro s e - -

im] Tha amosl of e acciudes e SE5T ecossrabie Fom Bae ATD |ebebhdory recesmsbie]

k| Flembicied o and cosh soohaiorks & 8 W Cesmight Cash Ueposil Feclfly with @ varsbie mergn niersd reda
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MIDLAMD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
HOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the permad anded 30 Dacamber 20 1

UguidEy Risk

The folowing b defals the contechunl matuity asaiysis for Snamcal Iabltes. The confchel mahrty amouns are epesemtaive of the
undlsooanisd amounts af the omd of the reporting perod. The Ebie Rcudes interest and princdpsl cash Sows. An adustment has been made whers

meaberial,

Iinderact rate axpocures and ageing anahselc of Anansal labiitec

i e B L= Nog-te daies
Faighied
4, =] [ e—r—r 5 zpmiran
b bt aTerg _rh: rEmma Horemimm fzr rn:-:l Usin 3 torn S 9]
Fatm i Fnin Exmis Dandng dsccorming EToaT rronim 313 monis ol parn o pmanrn It paanry &5 pmars EEl ke |
o 060 060 080 T S0 §{005 00K 00K 00K S50 S50 S50 8100
Fnecsl LsbiiSes
3% Decenb= 211
Pyl ™ - a7 - - 1,871 - - . . . - - - -
B owings CRL T - TS - - o rRran Frd 18 188 18 288 - - -
Ul -0 ueS 1,011 ST YT T ERY 18 I8 18 258 - - -
35 Junhe 2D
Pyl ™ - 0848 - - 3, - - . . . - - - -
e LR T - B ED - - i [red | i -] 12 £ 12 Ba& Ch e - -
TRET T 3 (R - B4 [re3 2 fEs ] 12 Bl 12 B8 CEe=) - -

] Tha mmous] of frorcl et memored o anorfeed conl arciude he G5 T payeble o B ATO (steiuriory prysble)

Midland Redevelopment Authority Final Report 1 July to 30 December 2011

52



